
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

14 March 2023 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 
Wednesday, 22nd March, 2023 at 10.00 am 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership:  Councillors Frank Pickett, Judy Welbourn and Stephen Woodliffe 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

  APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

  TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES 
LICENCE WHERE RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN RECEIVED - 
THE POOL SHED, MARSH FARM COTTAGE, FRAMPTON ROADS (Pages 1 - 
58) 
 

 (A report by Anna McDowell, Senior Licensing Officer)  
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Pippa Rose, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone: 01205 314228 e-
mail: pippa.rose@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Pippa Rose, 
Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 
 
 
 



LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

HEARING PROCEDURE – APPLICATIONS AND VARIATIONS 
 

Introduction  
 

The Chairman will: 
 

▪ Welcome everyone 
 
▪ Ask for any Declarations of Interest 

 
▪ State the purpose of the hearing  

 
▪ Introduce the Members of the Sub-Committee 

 
▪ Introduce the: 

 Legal Representative 
 Licensing Officer and the 

  Democratic Service Clerk  
 
▪ Explain that all parties have been given notice to attend the hearing and that the 

hearing will proceed notwithstanding a party’s failure to attend the hearing. 
 

 
The Legal Advisor will explain the following procedure: 
 
If any party intends to make reference to information which they believe should be private 
and confidential they are advised to make an application under The Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulation 2005 regulation 14 upon which the Sub-Committee will determine 
whether the public should be excluded from the hearing in accordance with that regulation.  
 
1. The Licensing Officer will address the hearing and provide details of the premises 

and a summary of the premises’ licensing history (if applicable) 
 
2. The Applicant or the Applicants’ representative will then present their case. 

 
▪ They will call any witnesses to give evidence in support of their case. 

 
▪  The Representatives (who have made representations/objections) may then 

question the Applicant and / or their witnesses. 
 

▪ The Members of the Sub-Committee may then ask questions of the Applicant of 
their witnesses. 

 
▪ The Applicant of their representative will then be offered the final opportunity of 

asking any further questions of their witnesses in order to clarify any points 
raised in earlier questioning. 

 
3.      Each individual Objector will then present their case in turn:  
 

▪ The Objector and / or their representative will provide the reasons for their 
objection. 

 
▪ The Objector and / or their representative will then call any witnesses in 

support. 
 



▪ The Applicant and / or their representative may then question the Objector / 
witnesses 

 
▪ The Members of the Sub-Committee may then question the Objector / 

witnesses 
 

▪ The Objector and / or their representative will then be given the final opportunity 
of asking any further questions of their witnesses to clarify any points raised in 
earlier questioning. 

 
4 The Applicant will then be asked by the Chairman of the Sub-Committee if, in light of 

the objections, they wish to amend their application.  (When the Sub-Committee 
retires they will only consider the application before them at that time) 

 
If the Applicant wishes to amend the application, or indicates that they are prepared 
for Members to give consideration to an amended application if they are minded to 
refuse the original application, the Objectors are to be allowed to comment on the 
amended application. 

 
5.      Closing Statement or Summary 

 
▪ Each individual objector can, in turn, summarise any points they wish to make 

and comment briefly on the Applicant’s replies to questions.  
They cannot introduce any new issues at this stage. 

 
▪ The Applicants can summarise any points they wish to make and comment 

briefly on the Objector’s replies to questions.  
They cannot introduce any new issues at this stage. 

 
6. Conclusion 

 
▪ The Chairman will then ask the Legal Advisor whether there are any other 

matters to be raised or resolved before the Sub-Committee retires to begin its 
deliberations.  
The Sub-Committee will exclude the press and public from its 
deliberations and its decision making. 

 
▪ The Chairman will advise the hearing that the Sub-Committee will retire to 

consider the application and that the Legal Advisor will be retiring with them but 
will take not part in the deliberation.  

 
If legal advice is given by the Legal Advisor in the course of deliberations the 
Legal Advisor will reiterate this advice in summary form to the hearing when the 
hearing is reconvened. 

 
▪ If any party to the hearing, or the Licensing Officer, are required to address the 

Sub-Committee during its deliberations, all parties will be invited to hear these 
issues.   

 
▪ Once a decision has been made, the Sub-Committee will return and the 

Chairman announces the decision and gives reasons for the decision including 
any conditions that have been attached and the right of appeal if necessary.  

 
▪ The decision will subsequently be formally notified to the Applicant and the 

Objector in writing by the Licensing Authority within 5 working days.  
 



 
 
 

 

REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE – SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 MARCH 2023 – 10.00 HOURS  

SUBJECT: 
 
 
PURPOSE:  

THE POOL SHED, MARSH FARM COTTAGE, FRAMPTON ROADS, 
FRAMPTON, BOSTON, PE20 1AY 
 
TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE WHERE RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE 
BEEN RECEIVED 
 

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

SENIOR LICENSING OFFICER 

ANNA MCDOWELL 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: CENTRAL  

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This is a hearing to consider an application for the grant of a Premises Licence, the applicants 
being Mr Neil Wright.  In summary the applicants seek a licence to carry out licensable activities 
consisting of the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises, the provision of 
regulated entertainment, consisting of recorded music, and the provision of late night 
refreshment. 
 
Relevant representations have been received from persons not being a responsible authority.   
 
The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Sub-Committee determine an application 
where any relevant representations have been received. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee must determine the application, in accordance with the Licensing 
Act 2003, having regard to the guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act and the Licensing 
Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy.    
 
It is recommended that the Sub-Committee take into account all evidence and information 
received from the interested parties and the applicant and determine this matter. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



The Sub-Committee must, having regard to all information presented, take such steps as 
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  These steps are set out in 
the Licensing Act 2003 Section 18 (4) as follows: 
 

 To grant the licence, subject mandatory conditions and conditions in the 
operating schedule;  

 To grant the licence with modified conditions; 

 Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 
application relates; 

 To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 

 To reject the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee must give full reasons for its decision. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Section 18 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires that 

“3. Where relevant representations are made, the authority must –  

a. hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person who has 
made a representation agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 

b. having regard to representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection 4 (if any) as 
it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 
1.  BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The applicant has been holding adult themed parties at the premises for a number of years. 

The premises previously operated as private parties without a premises licence and attendees 
would bring their own alcoholic beverages with them for consumption at the event.  
 

1.2 In December 2022 the applicants submitted an application in accordance with Section 17 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. This application was subsequently withdrawn to enable consultation to be 
carried out with a number of responsible authorities including Lincolnshire Police and Boston 
Borough Council’s Planning Department prior to resubmission. 
  

1.3  The premises is located on the outskirts of the village of Frampton and is located in a rural, 
predominantly residential area. A plan indicating the premises location is attached at 
APPENDIX 1. 

 
 
 

Page 2



2.   APPLICATION 
 
2.1     On 01 February 2023 an application for the grant of a premises licence, under section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, was received from Mr Neil Wright. The application also specifies Mr Wright 
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.   

 
2.2 The applicant seeks a licence to permit licensable activities as follows: 
 
 Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises  
  
 Monday – Thursday:  11.00 hours until 00.00 hours  
 Friday & Saturday: 11.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day  
 Sunday :  11.00 hours until 22.00 hours  
 07 May 2023:  23.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day   
 

Recorded music indoors 
Monday – Thursday:  11.00 hours until 00.00 hours  

 Friday & Saturday: 11.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day  
 Sunday :  11.00 hours until 22.00 hours  
 07 May 2023:  11.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day   
 
 Recorded music outdoors 
 Monday – Saturday:  11.00 hours until 00.00 hours  
 Sunday :  11.00 hours until 22.00 hours  
 07 May 2023:  11.00 hours until 00.00 hours  
 

Late night refreshment 
Monday – Thursday:  23.00 hours until 00.00 hours  

 Friday & Saturday: 23.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day  
 07 May 2023:  23.00 hours until 02.00 hours the following day   

 
2.3 The application states that the proposed opening hours are as follows: 
 
 Monday – Thursday:  11.00 hours until 00.30 hours the following day  
 Friday & Saturday: 11.00 hours until 02.30 hours the following day  
 Sunday :  11.00 hours until 22.30 hours  

 
A copy of the application is attached at APPENDIX 2. 

 
2.4 In submitting the application the applicant is required to describe any steps intended to be 

taken to promote the four licensing objectives, namely: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 
 
2.5 The steps the applicant intends to take to promote the licensing objectives, should the licence 

be granted, are in accordance with the operating schedule at section M of the application. 
Steps identified at part M are appended to a granted licence as conditions with which a licence 
holder must comply. 

Page 3



3.  CONSULTATION 
 
3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the applicant send a copy of their application to the 

responsible authorities and post a notice in a local news publication, providing the details of 
the application. They must also post a copy of the notice in a prominent position outside the 
premises for 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the application is received by the 
Licensing Authority. The Council must also post notice of the application on their website. It is 
confirmed that these requirements were complied with. 

 
4. RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS 

 
4.1 A Responsible Authority or other person may submit a representation during the 28 day 

consultation period.   
 
4.2  The Licensing Act 2003 states that relevant representations mean representations which are 

about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.  Only parts of a representation that are relevant to the application and its impact on 
those objectives may be considered. 

 
4.3 Relevant representations have been received from a number of persons other than a 

responsible authority and a copy of those representations is attached at APPENDIX 3.  
 
4.4 A party who has submitted a representation may choose to rely on their written submission or 

may attend the hearing to put their representation to the Sub-Committee.  At the hearing the 
party may not add further representation to that disclosed to the applicant but may expand on 
the existing representation.   

 
5. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1 The application must be considered on its own merits; standardised conditions cannot be 

applied.  
 
5.2 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives requires an assessment of what would be suitable to achieve that end.  Whilst this 
does not require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the 
authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would impose on the 
Premises Licence holder as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  However, it is imperative that the Sub-Committee ensures that the 
factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to consideration of the promotion 
of the licensing objectives and nothing outside of those parameters.  The Sub-Committee must 
come to its determination based on an assessment of the evidence of both the risks and 
benefits either for or against making the determination. 

 
5.3 When considering the evidence the Sub-Committee must satisfy themselves whether or not 

the licensing objectives would be promoted as the application stands.   The Sub-Committee 
must have regard to evidence, not speculation. In the case of a new application/new premises, 
the history and makeup of the site (and surrounding area) and the history of the applicant will 
be relevant, if sufficiently evidenced. 

 
5.4 The Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing on the relevant parts of representations 

only and the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective(s) that 

Page 4



have given rise to the representations and avoid straying into undisputed areas.  Any matter 
which is not about the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of one or more 
of the four licensing objectives is not, in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, relevant and 
therefore cannot be considered. 

 
5.5 Conditions on a premises licence are important in setting the parameters within which 

premises can lawfully operate.  The use of wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will” is 
encouraged.  If consideration is given to attaching or amending conditions, they: 

 

 Must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

 Must be precise and enforceable; 

 Must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

 Should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities placed 
on the licence holder by other legislation; 

 Must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and 
events concerned; 

 Should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that 
they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual case; 

 Should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or any other legislation; 

 Should be proportionate, justifiable and capable of being met; 

 Cannot seek to manage the behavior of customers once they are beyond the direct 
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behavior of 
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and 

 Should be written in a prescriptive format.   
 
5.6 In determining the application, in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the licensing 
authority must give appropriate weight to: 

 

 The Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy. Relevant extracts of which are 
attached at APPENDIX 4.  

 The statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. Relevant 
extracts of which, are attached at APPENDIX 5.  

 
6. Human Rights & Equalities 
 
6.1 In determining the review the Sub-Committee should be aware of and take into account any 

implications that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998.  Under the Human Rights Act it is 
unlawful for a public authority to act in a manner which is incompatible with the European 
Convention on Human Rights. 

 
6.2 When determining the application the Sub-Committee should be satisfied that any decision 

which interferes with the rights of the licence holder, or of any other person, only does so 
insofar as is necessary to protect the rights of others and that no alternative decision would be 
more appropriate.  

 
6.3 The Sub-Committee, in its decision-making, must have due regard to its public sector equality 

duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.  A copy of section 149 of the Act is attached at 
APPENDIX 6. 

 

Page 5



7. Appeal 
 
7.1 The applicant for review and/or the holder of the premises licence may appeal the decision 

made by the Sub-Committee to the Magistrates Court.  Any appeal must be made within 21 
days of the day on which the appellant is notified, in writing, by the Licensing Authority of the 
decision to be appealed against. 

 
7.2 The hearing determination does not take effect until the end of the period for appealing 

against the decision or, if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of. 
 
EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 
By working together as a Partnership the three sovereign councils benefit from the learning and 
experience of each other and also the trade benefits from a consistency and uniformity of approach 
from the Licensing service across the sub-region. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 
There are no SELCP implications. 
 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
This work contributes to one Priority areas in the Boston Borough Council Corporate Strategy 2020 to 
2024; Priority One. People Focussed: Make Boston as healthy and safe place to work. 
 
STAFFING 
There are no implications in terms of staffing. 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
An appeal could be lodged with Lincolnshire Magistrates’ Court against the decision of the Regulatory 
& Appeals Sub – Committee. 
 
DATA PROTECTION 
The personal details relating to the persons/s submitting representation has been redacted for data 
protection purposes. 
 
FINANCIAL 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and guidance are 
not upheld and applied appropriately. 
 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 
There are no stakeholder implications. 
 
REPUTATION 
There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and guidance are 
not upheld and applied appropriately. 
 
CONTRACTS 
None. 

Page 6



 
CRIME AND DISORDER 
The Council has a duty to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 
Equality Implications: The licensing authority must have due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
Human Rights: Under the Human Rights Act it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a manner that is 
incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. 
Safeguarding Implications: The Council has a duty to protect the public and promote the four licensing 
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm within the Borough that is consistent with prevailing national 
guidance and standards. 
 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING 
The licensing and compliance role of the Council is important in improving the health, safety, security 
and welfare of the borough’s residents, visitors, and business community. Effective implementation of 
a fair, proportionate and consistent licensing regime should help to promote the local economy. 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no implications. 
 
ACRONYMS 
None 
 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX 1 Location plan  

APPENDIX 2 Copy of premises licence application 

APPENDIX 3 Copy of representations 

APPENDIX 4 Extract from BBC Statement of Licensing Policy 

APPENDIX 5 Relevant extracts from Section 182 Guidance 

APPENDIX 6 Extract from the Equality Act 2010 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

Page 7



REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Anna McDowell - Senior Licensing Officer  

anna.mcdowell@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: 

Approved for publication: 

Christian Allen – Assistant Director Regulatory 

christian.allen@boston.gov.uk 

 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29

McDowellA
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

McDowellA_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 3



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

Page 5 of 35 

 Parish Councils 

 Other persons and organisations that the Authority considered could contribute to 
this Policy 

 
A full list of consultees is available from the Licensing Section on request. 

 
Appropriate weight has been given to the views of all those consulted prior to this policy 
statement taking effect on 24 November 2020. 

 
2.5 In developing this Policy, the Licensing Authority took into account the legal requirements 

of the 2003 Act and had regard to other legislation and guidance, including, but not 
exclusively: 

 

 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all reasonable steps to 
reduce crime and disorder within the Borough 

 

 The Regulators’ Compliance Code (set out under the Legislative and Regulatory 
Reform Act 2006) not to impede economic progress by the regulations we set out 
and to particularly consider the impact of regulations on small businesses 

 

 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements are: 
 

 Non- discriminatory. 
 Justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest. 
 Proportionate to that public interest objective. 
 Clear and unambiguous.  
 Objective. 
 Made public in advance, and 
 Transparent and accessible 

 

 Human Rights Act, 1998 
 

 Violent Crime Reduction Act, 2006 
 

 Policing and Crime Act, 2009 
 

 Police reform and Social Responsibility Act, 2011 
 

 Live Music Act, 2012 
 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act, 2014 
 

 The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order, 2014 
 

 Deregulation Act, 2015 
 

 Immigration Act, 2016 
 

 Equality Act, 2010 
 
2.6 The Act describes two “bodies” that may make representations to licence applications 

and may apply for an existing premises licence to be reviewed by the Licensing Authority, 
Responsible Authorities and “other persons”.  Responsible Authorities are defined in the 
Act. 

 

Page 37

LocalAdmin
Highlight

LocalAdmin_1
Highlight

McDowellA_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4



 

Page 6 of 35 

2.7 “Other persons” means any individual, body or business who is affected by the operation 
of a licensed premises regardless of their geographical location.  Although they may be in 
any geographical location, any representation they make must be relevant to one or more 
of the licensing objectives and must not be considered to be frivolous or vexatious.  
Additionally, any application to review a premises licence must not be repetitious.   

 
2.8 The Licensing Authority will, however, look at the geographical location of the author of 

any representation or review application received.  Where the author lives or works a 
significant distance from the premises subject of an application or a review, this authority 
will examine the content of the representation particularly closely.  The authority will 
expect the author to explain in detail how, in terms of the licensing objectives, they would 
be affected by the application.  The Licensing Authority will consider rejecting any 
representation or review application which does not include sufficient detail to outline 
harm or disturbance which may be caused. 

 
2.9 The purpose of licensing is to control licensed premises and other events within the terms 

of the Act.  Where responsible authorities and other persons do not raise any 
representations about the application made to the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the 
Authority to grant a licence or certificate subject to conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the 2003 Act itself.  The 
Licensing Authority will not impose any further conditions unless its discretion has been 
engaged following the making of relevant representation(s).  It may then only impose 
such conditions as are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the 
consideration of the representation(s). 

 
2.10 These conditions will relate to the premises and other places being used for licensable 

activities and the impact of those activities in the vicinity. In this regard the Licensing 
Authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of any activities taking place on those 
living, working or otherwise engaged in the area concerned.  Vicinity has not been given 
a definition within the Act and may vary in distance from the premises depending on the 
nature of the area.  Considerations which will be taken into account when assessing “in 
the vicinity” include but are not limited to: 

 

 The nature of the licensable activity 

 The nature and locality of the premises 

 The time of day of the proposed licensable activity/activities 

 The frequency of the activity/activities 
 
 
2.11 The Licensing Authority will discharge its responsibilities identified by other Local and 

Government strategies and policies, so far as they impact on the objectives of the 
Licensing Act.  Some examples of these strategies and policies are: 

 

 Government Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related Crime, Disorder and 
Nuisance; 

 

 Safer Clubbing 
 
 

 Community Safety Strategy. 
 
 
 

 Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) Home Office guidance or any successor 
to this. 

Page 38



 

Page 8 of 35 

 crime and disorder 

 community safety issues 

 needs of the local tourist economy 

 employment situation in the area and the need for new investment and   
employment where appropriate 

 planning considerations which might affect licensed premises 

 local transport arrangements 

 impact of licensing on regulated entertainment and particularly live music and 
dancing with reference to any cultural strategy 

 any other reports considered appropriate to the licensing function 
  
3.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen as a 

re-run of the planning application process and that there should be a clear separation of 
the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency.  There are 
several key differences between licensing and planning control.  Licensing is concerned 
with the fitness of the operator and detailed issues concerning the operation and 
management of the premises that are not addressed by the planning control process.  
Planning control relates to use of the premises. The grant of planning permission should 
not be a presumption that a premises licence will automatically follow and vice versa.  
Additionally, there is no legal basis for the Licensing Authority to refuse a licence 
application because it does not have planning permission. 

 
3.5 Applicants are strongly encouraged to make any necessary applications for Planning 

permission /Building Regulations approval permission before or at the same time as they 
make an application for a licence/club premises certificate. Furthermore, to reduce the 
risk of being subject to planning enforcement, applicants are advised to ensure that: 

 

 the activity to be authorised by the premises licence or club premises certificate 
is a lawful planning use; and 

 

 the hours sought do not exceed those authorised by any planning permission. 
  
3.6 In reaching a decision of whether or not to grant a licence, the Licensing Authority will 

take account of any non-compliance with other statutory requirements brought to its 
attention, particularly where these undermine the licensing objectives.  Non-compliance 
with statutory requirements may demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable for the 
activities proposed or that the management of the premises is not adequate to protect the 
public from harm or nuisance. 

 
3.7 In order to avoid duplication with other existing legislation and regulatory regimes the 

Licensing Authority will not attach conditions to the licence unless they are considered 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Conditions will be considered 
unnecessary if they are already adequately covered by other legislation.  

 
3.8  Conditions (other than mandatory conditions and those in the applicant’s operating 

schedule) may not be attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate unless 
the application has been the subject of a relevant representation. 

 

4  Licensing Objectives 
  

Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal importance and no one objective will take 
precedence over others when considering applications. 

 
The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of 
premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of best practice to 

Page 39



 

Page 9 of 35 

be amongst the most essential control measures for the achievement of all the licensing 
objectives.  For this reason these elements should be specifically considered and 
addressed within the applicants operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants carry out their own risk 
assessments in relation to the four licensing objectives in order to assist them in deciding 
whether any steps are required to be taken in order to meet those objectives. 

 
In accordance with the Home Office Guidance to Licensing Authorities, this Authority 
expects applicants to demonstrate knowledge of the area within which the licensed 
premises is situated.  This would include, for example, proximity to residential properties, 
areas where children congregate and any risk posed to the local area by the applicant’s 
proposed licensable activity. 

 

4.1 Prevention of crime and disorder 
  
4.1.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the 

prevention of crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate 
holders/designated premises supervisors take measures to regulate the behaviour of 
persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises. 

 
4.1.2 In addition to the requirement for the Licensing Authority to promote this licensing 

objective, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and do all it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough. 

 
4.1.3 When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the crime and disorder objective.  Such steps as are 
required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedule the 
steps they propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder.  These steps will vary 
from premises to premises according to the type of licensable activities that are to be 
carried on.  Examples of measures the Licensing Authority encourage applicants to 
consider and address include 

 

 Physical security features e.g. use of toughened, polycarbonate  or plastic 
drinking glasses 

 Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol promotions to ensure they do not 
promote irresponsible drinking or potentially breach the mandatory condition on 
irresponsible drinks promotions 

 The use  and number of  Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door 
supervisors 

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce the risk of high volume vertical 
drinking 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention and drug awareness measures 

 Measures agreed with the Police to reduce crime and disorder 

 Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs 

 Search procedures 

 Formalisation of a dispersal policy 

 Measures to prevent customers taking glasses and bottles away from the 
premises 

Page 40



 

Page 10 of 35 

 Training given to staff to prevent the sale of alcohol to those who are under age 
or appear drunk 

 Measures to tackle street drinking including not selling single cans or bottles of 
beer, lager and cider; not selling super strength (ABV above 6.5) beer, lager and 
cider; and attaching water proof labels with printed shop names and addresses to 
cans and bottles of beer, lager and cider. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 

CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for reducing crime and disorder. The 
Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol for consumption on or off the 
premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that operates in compliance with 
the requirements of Lincolnshire Police 

 
4.1.4 The British Beer and Pub Association (BBPA) has consolidated good practice on 

combating violence in licensed premises into a guide to risk assessment.  This is 
available on the BBPAs website: www.beerandpub.com. 

 

4.2 Public Safety 
 
4.2.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out their licensing functions with a view to promoting 

public safety and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate holders/designated 
premises supervisors take measures to protect the safety of performers and persons 
attending licensable activities.  The risk to public safety will vary according to the type of 
premises and the activities carried out. 

 
The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedules the 
steps they propose to take to promote public safety. 

 
4.2.2 Where an applicant identifies an issue in regard to public safety, which is not covered by 

existing legislation, the applicant should identify in their operating schedule the steps 
which will be taken to ensure public safety. 

 
4.2.3 Depending on the individual style and characteristics of the premises and/or events the 

following issues may be of relevance: 
 

 Use of equipment and effects 

 Levels of door supervision 

 Measures to prevent the supply and use of illegal drugs 

 Physical safety features e.g. use of toughened glass, polycarbonate and plastic 
containers 

 Fire evacuation procedures 

 Provision of CCTV (see para 7.1.3) 

 Occupancy figures 
 
4.2.4 It will be the responsibility of licence/certificate holders/designated premises supervisors 

to ensure they have complied with all Health and Safety legislation. 
 
4.2.5 Where a premise is on a vessel for which a current Passenger Ship Certificate is in force, 

the public safety objective can generally be considered to be met in respect of the layout, 
structure, access arrangements and operation of the vessel. 

 
4.2.6 Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot require documentation regarding risk assessments 

to be attached to the operating schedule, it considers such risk assessments to be good 
practice.  Risk assessments, including fire risk assessments, are a useful tool in the 
instruction and training of staff, as well as a sound basis for review by the licence holder, 

Page 41

http://www.beerandpub.com/


 

Page 11 of 35 

in the event of needing to make an application for variation of a premises licence or in 
response to changing circumstances/conditions at the premises. 

 

4.3 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
4.3.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on communities 

through public nuisances that arise from their operation.  The Licensing Authority wishes 
to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential 
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising the valuable 
cultural, social and business importance that such premises provide. 

 
4.3.2 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest sense and 

takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, 
where these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal 
activity in an area. 

 
4.3.3 When addressing public nuisance the applicant should initially identify any particular 

issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the objective to prevent public nuisance.  Such steps as 
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s 
operating schedule.  For example, the Licensing Authority expects an applicant to identify 
how public nuisance will be controlled in outside areas, particularly in smoking areas, that 
are not within the boundary of the licensed area. This would include prohibiting the 
consumption of alcohol. 

 
4.3.4 Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and 

sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to 
prevent public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their 
premises and events. These may include: 

 

 The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive 
premises, such as hospitals, local businesses,  hospices and places of worship 

 The hours of opening, particularly between 23.00 and 07.00 

 The nature of the activities to be provided, including whether those activities are 
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or 
outside the premises 

 The design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of noise 
limiting and/or monitoring features 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises (Where appropriate) 

 The availability of public transport to facilitate dispersal of customers 

 ‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and the closure of 
the premises 

 last admission time 

 The formulation of a dispersal policy 

 Control of nuisance from persons using outside areas and in particular smoking 
areas. 

 
4.3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may need 

to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type 
of premises and/or activities 

 

 Effective and responsible management of premises 

 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged 
to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure customers leave quietly 

Page 42



 

Page 12 of 35 

 Control of operating hours for all or parts (e.g. garden areas) of the premises, 
including such matters as deliveries 

 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good practice Guide on the Control of 
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of Acoustics) 

 Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limitation devices 

 Management of people, including staff and traffic (and resulting queues) arriving 
and leaving premises 

 Liaison with public transport providers 

 Siting of external lighting, including security lighting 

 Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter 

 Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour 

 Undertaking noise impact assessments 

 Regular assessments of the noise coming from the premises when used for 
regulated entertainment and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause 
disturbance to local residents. 

 Regular assessment of any noise coming from outside areas, including smoking 
areas, and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause disturbance to 
local residents. 

 Keeping a written record of assessments in a log book kept for that purpose 
including, the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the 
results including any remedial action.  

 Identifying smoking areas in operating schedules to enable responsible 
authorities to appraise proposals with a view to promoting the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective. 

 Keeping external doors (except for access and egress) and windows closed 
when regulated entertainment is being provided except in the event of an 
emergency. 

 The disposal of empty glass bottles not being undertaken externally between 
23.00 hours and opening hours on the following day on every day of the week. 

 Posting at exits from the premises in a place where they can be seen and easily 
read by the public, notices requiring customers to leave the premises and the 
area quietly and in an orderly manner. 

 Regularly clearing outside the premises of litter associated with the operation of 
the premises e.g. cigarette ends. 

 

4.4 Protection of children from harm 

 
4.4.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may 

be sought. These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls and schools. Except as prohibited by law, access by children 
to all types of premises will not be limited in any way unless it is considered necessary to 
do so to protect them from harm.   It is hoped that family friendly premises will thrive but 
the risk of harm to children remains a paramount consideration when determining 
applications. 

 
The protection of children from harm includes protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm. 

 
4.4.2 When receiving relevant representations and deciding whether to limit access to children, 

other than in circumstances where the law demands their access to be limited, 
applicants/licence/certificate holders should consider the activities carried on at the 
premises.  Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children would include 
premises; 

Page 43



 

Page 13 of 35 

 

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly 
provided; 

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

 With a known association with drug taking or dealing 

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for 
example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines) 

      
 
4.4.3 Films - In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions, conditions will be 

imposed restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any 
certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a 
certificate given to the film by the Licensing Authority itself.  Applicants will be expected to 
explain in their operating schedule the steps they intend to take to ensure children and 
young persons do not gain access to films with a restricted access classification. 

 
Where a film is to be shown locally within the authority’s area and has not been classified 
by the British Board of Film Classification, an application can be made to the Authority for 
the film to be classified.  Applications should be made in accordance with the guidelines 
set out by the British Board of Film Classification.  These guidelines can be found at: 
www.bbfc.co.uk. 

 
4.4.4 Theatres- In certain cases it may be necessary to impose a condition to restrict the 

admission of children to theatres, which are incorporating adult entertainment in their 
productions. 

 
4.4.5 Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed   

premises and representations are received; conditions may be imposed requiring the 
presence of an appropriate number of adult staff to ensure public safety and their 
protection from harm.  Where the Licensing Authority considers it appropriate, following 
receipt of relevant representation(s) it may require the adult supervisors (being persons 
over the age of 18) to be subject to a criminal record check.  The onus will be on the 
Premises Licence holder to ensure that staff members are suitable to carry out the 
supervision of children, which may include criminal record disclosure from the Disclosure 
and Barring Service (DBS). 

 
4.4.6 The options available for limiting access by children would include – 
 

 Limitations of the hours when children may be present 

 Limitations or the exclusion of the presence of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking place; 

 Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access; 

 Age limitations (below 18 years); 

 Requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a requirement 
which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an 
adult); and 

 Full exclusion of those people under 18 years of age from the premises when 
any licensable activities are taking place. 

 
4.4.7 The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires access for 

children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the 
issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licence 
holder/certificate holder or designated premises supervisor. 

 

Page 44

http://www.bbfc.co.uk/


 

Page 14 of 35 

4.4.8  The body responsible for the interests of children is: 
 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership 
 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership can be contacted through Lincolnshire 
County Council. 

 
The reasons the Licensing Authority has chosen the above as a Responsible Authority 
competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm are: 

 

 That this body is answerable to democratically elected persons and is not 
answerable to a particular vested interest group; 

 

 That this body is responsible for the area covered by this Licensing Authority and 
this policy; 

 

 That this body is experienced in dealing with the protection of children. 
 
4.4.9 In respect of premises licensed for the sale of alcohol, The Portman Group Code of 

Practice on The Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks should be 
followed to ensure drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner 
and only to those who are 18 years or older.   

 
4.4.10 The sale of alcohol to children and young persons under the relevant age is a criminal 

offence, often resulting in harm to the children and young persons concerned and 
disturbance and nuisance to local residents and businesses.  Applicants should detail 
adequate control measures in their operating schedule to prevent under-age sales.  The 
Licensing Authority recognises that Lincolnshire County Council Trading Standards 
Service, as part of its responsibilities and duties under the legislation controlling the sale 
of age restricted products, including alcohol, provides advice and guidance on the 
controls and systems that may be adopted to help prevent such sales.  Applicants are 
strongly advised to contact Trading Standards for advice on this matter.  The Licensing 
Authority also recognises that in liaison with the Police, the Trading Standards Service 
conducts covert test purchasing exercises to check compliance with the law. 

 
Challenge 25 – The mandatory licence conditions (introduced in October 2014) require 
relevant premises to hold an age verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. The Licensing Authority supports the adoption of the Challenge 25 Schemes (or 
similar scheme) for licensed premises.  

 
A suitable proof of age policy adopted by a licence holder should require the production 
of a photo-driving licence or passport before sale or entry into the premises. For added 
security, licence holders are encouraged to consider use of the Proof of Age Standards 
Scheme (PASS) and accept cards showing the PASS logo. 

 
4.4.11 Where licence holders wish to employ children they should ensure that the legislation 

regarding this matter is complied with and any necessary permits to work have been 
obtained.  Further information on the requirements of this legislation is available from the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

 

5 The Licensing Process 

 
5.1  The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the 

Licensing Committee, by a Sub-Committee or by one or more officers acting under 
delegated authority in accordance with the provisions of the Act.  Delegated powers are 

Page 45



 

Page 15 of 35 

in accordance with the table at Appendix 1.  This table does not form part of the policy 
and may therefore be amended without consultation with statutory consultees. 

 
5.2  Each application for licensing will be considered on its own merit. Nothing will undermine 

any person from applying for a variety of permissions under the Act. 
 
5.3   Other than electronic applications applicants are reminded that documents submitted as 

part of an application which bear a signature, criminal record certificates, criminal 
conviction certificates, subject access documents and licensing qualifications must be 
original documents.  Faxes and photocopies are not acceptable unless with the prior 
agreement of the Licensing Authority. 

 
5.4  Applicants for any authority or permission are expected to make their application in 

accordance with the Act and any regulations made there under.   Failure to meet this 
requirement may result in the application being returned.  The Licensing Authority will 
endeavour to explain why the application is considered to be deficient and will invite the 
applicant to re-submit the application with all the required information.  Application forms 
will not be returned where they contain obvious and minor factual errors that can easily 
be amended.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to send a copy of their application 
and any other relevant documentation to each of the Responsible Authorities, unless the 
application has been properly made electronically, in which case it is the responsibility of 
the Licensing Authority to circulate it. Where applicants fail, after being reminded, to copy 
applications to Responsible Authorities, or they resubmit applications which are still 
deficient, the application will be rejected.  Re-submission of an application following 
rejection will be subject to the statutory advertising requirements. 

 
5.5   A main part in ensuring compliance with the Act, and in particular showing how the four 

licensing objectives are to be achieved, is the “operating schedule” for the licensed 
premises.  The operating schedule forms part of the licence application.  The schedule 
will aid any Responsible Authority or other party to assess whether the steps to be taken 
to promote the licensing objectives are satisfactory.  The schedule will form part of the 
conditions of the licence or certificate, if granted.  The Licensing Authority will work with 
the licensees and applicants by providing guidance notes on the completion of the 
schedules.  However, the responsibility for drawing up the operating schedule rests with 
the applicant.  The operating schedule should detail the manner in which the business will 
be run and the steps/controls put in place to meet the licensing objectives.  Any individual 
preparing an operating schedule is free to volunteer any measure as a step he or she 
intends to take to promote the licensing objectives.  The operating schedule must specify 
all types of entertainment which will take place at the premises 

 
5.6  Applications for minor variations may be subject to consultation with the appropriate 

responsible authorities and will be refused if any responsible authority indicates that they 
would make a representation on the proposed minor variation. 

 
5.7 In an effort to avoid unnecessary hearings, applicants are strongly advised to prepare risk 

assessments and from these formulate any steps they consider necessary to promote the 
licensing objectives and then to consult with the responsible authorities as defined within 
the Act before submitting their applications.  Failure to do so may lead to representations 
which can only be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee. In respect of minor 
variations applicants are strongly advised to contact the appropriate responsible 
authorities before formally submitting their application in order to avoid unnecessary 
expense.  

 
5.8 Account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote all types of entertainment, 

including live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community 
as a whole.  If representations are made concerning the potential for limited disturbance 

Page 46

LocalAdmin_2
Highlight



 

Page 16 of 35 

from these activities in a particular neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s 
consideration will be balanced against the wider benefits to the community. 

 
5.9 The guidance issued by the Home Office indicates that representations can be made in 

opposition to, or in support of, an application.  With this in mind the Licensing Authority 
would remind all parties that all representations (both for and against and application) 
must relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
5.10 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the views of vocal minorities should not be 

allowed to predominate over the general interest of the community. 
 

6 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 
 
6.1   Applicants will be required to submit their application in the form detailed in regulations 

made under the Act.  Applicants will be required to submit, with their application for a 
premises licence, club premises certificate, Provisional Statement or a variation to their 
existing premises licence or club registration certificate, an Operating Schedule detailing: 
- 

 

 The licensable activities to be conducted on the premises; 
 

 The times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities are to 
take place; 

 

 Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public or to members of 
a club; 

 

 Where the licence is required only for a limited period, that period; 
 

 Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, the name, address 
and licence number of the individual to be specified as the designated premises 
supervisor; 

 

 Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, whether the alcohol 
will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises or both; and 

 

 The steps which the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 
6.2 Applications will be determined having regard to: 
 

 This Policy 
 

 The Licensing Act 2003 and subordinate legislation. 
 

 Guidance issued by the Home Office 
 

 Any relevant representations received (provided they are not determined to be 
frivolous or vexatious). 

  
6.3 LARGE SCALE EVENTS - Organisers of large events, major festivals and carnivals 

should approach the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities at the earliest 
opportunity to discuss arrangements for the licensing of those activities falling within the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  In respect of some events, the organisers may 
seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

Page 47

LocalAdmin_3
Highlight



This page is intentionally left blank



 

2. The licensing objectives  
 
Crime and disorder  
 
Paragraph 2.1  
 
Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime and 
disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership (CSP).  
 
Paragraph 2.2  
 
In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant conditions 
to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in preventing crime and 
disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed and, in partnership with 
police and other agencies, that security companies are not being used as fronts for serious 
and organised criminal activity. This may include making specific enquiries or visiting 
premises through intelligence led operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities 
and other partner agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision 
may be appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying 
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.  
 
Paragraph 2.3  
 
Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder including 
the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). For example, 
where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of 
closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately outside the premises 
can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime generally. Some 
licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for the prevention of crime 
directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But any condition may require 
a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that the precise location of 
cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no 
subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.  
 
Paragraph 2.4  
 
The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow managers 
of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a rapid 
response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on the 
premises.  
 
Paragraph 2.5  
 
Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the responsibility 
of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing authority, to ensure 
that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and appropriately trained. The 

Page 49

McDowellA_3
Typewritten Text

McDowellA_4
Typewritten Text

McDowellA_5
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 5



designated premises supervisor is the key person who will usually be responsible for the day 
to day management of the premises by the premises licence holder, including the 
prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare 
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with 
particular premises, poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime and 
disorder and public safety.  
 
Paragraph 2.6  
 
The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these matters. 
Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal working in 
licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to 
work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 
document checked as part of a right to work check are retained at the licensed premises.  
 

Public safety  
 
Paragraph 2.7  
 
Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises, as a 
part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the relevant 
premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation. Physical safety 
includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate harms that can result 
from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating 
to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There 
will of course be occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a 
person’s health more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this 
would be outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. 
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate which 
relate to cleanliness or hygiene.  
 
Paragraph 2.8  
 
A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may include:  
 
•   Fire safety;  
•   Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;  
•   Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example  

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see 
paragraph 2.4 above);  

•   Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first 
aid kits;  

•  Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the 
provision of information on late-night transportation);  

•  Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;  
•  Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see 

paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and  
•  Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3 

above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).  

Page 50



 
Paragraph 2.9  
 
The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises and 
the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-8.46), 
applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is appropriate to 
take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they achieve that.  
 
Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises  
 
Paragraph 2.10  
 
Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their 
premises. Measures that may assist include:  
 
•  Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe 

transportation home; and  
•  Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and 

from the premises and in car parks.  
 
Maintenance and repair  
 
Paragraph 2.11  
 
Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for 
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain 
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition to 
require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require as a 
condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be 
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the 
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a requirement 
in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing authorities, if they receive 
relevant representations from responsible authorities or any other persons, to attach 
conditions which require equipment of particular standards to be maintained on the 
premises. Responsible authorities – such as health and safety authorities – should therefore 
make their expectations clear in this respect to enable prospective licence holders or clubs 
to prepare effective operating schedules and club operating schedules.  
 
Safe capacities  
 
Paragraph 2.12  
 
“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public 
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity has 
been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in a 
premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict with 
other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through other 
legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity to be 
attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the licensable 
activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For example, in certain 

Page 51



circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing disorder, as overcrowded 
venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated and hostile.  
 
Paragraph 2.13  
 
The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises at 
any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises licence or 
club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity where the 
applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section 177 of the 
2003 Act, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the appropriate 
capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire and rescue 
authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of early morning 
when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This 
is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 
am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may 
also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.  
 
Paragraph 2.20  
 
Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside 
premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise 
to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible 
authorities will need to balance these issues.  
 
Paragraph 2.21  
 
Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal 
responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-social 
behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a 
licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires 
the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons 
to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated 
places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby 
to a peaceful night.  
 

Protection of children from harm  
 
Paragraph 2.22  
 
The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the harms 
associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to 
strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of exposure to certain 
films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also consider the need to protect 
children from sexual exploitation when undertaking licensing functions.  
 
Paragraph 2.23  
 
The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children. 
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are appropriate 

Page 52



to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, conditions restricting 
the access of children to premises should be strongly considered in circumstances where:  
 
•  adult entertainment is provided;  
•  a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in 
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds 
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);  

•  it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;  
•  there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or  
•  in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises.  
 
Paragraph 2.24  
 
It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain 
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café bar 
during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a sexual 
content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts to 
entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible  
authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would 
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances 
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or 
entertainment involving strong and offensive language.  
 
Paragraph 2.25  
 
Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at which 
the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for children to 
enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of premises to 
schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure that advertising 
relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not displayed at a time 
when children are likely to be near the premises.  
 
Paragraph 2.26 
 
 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when preparing 
an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be taken to protect 
children from harm when on the premises.  
 
Paragraph 2.27  
 
Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking place 
on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, other 
conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:  
 
•  restrictions on the hours when children may be present;  
•  restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place;  
•  restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;  
•  age restrictions (below 18);  

Page 53



•  restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;  
•  requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 

requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 
accompanied by an adult); and  

•  full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities 
are taking place.  

 
Paragraph 2.28  
 
Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing 
Conditions) Order 2010.  
 
Paragraph 2.29  
 
Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child 
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate directly 
to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to relevant evidence 
to inform such representations. These representations may include, amongst other things, 
the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to underage drinkers. Where 
a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to the licensing authority linking 
specific premises with harms to children (such as ambulance data or emergency department 
attendances by persons under 18 years old with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this 
evidence should be considered, and the licensing authority should also consider what action 
is appropriate to ensure this licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to 
applications for the grant of a licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of 
alcohol-related harms in persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing 
authority considers what conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is 
promoted effectively.  
 

8. Applications for premises licences 
 
Other persons 
 
Paragraph 8.13 
 
As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of licensing 
processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business entitled to 
make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the grant, 
variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises certificates, 
regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. Any representations made by 
these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or more of the 
licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous 
or vexatious.  
 

Steps to promote the licensing objectives  

 
Paragraph 8.41  
 
In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 
statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations of 

Page 54



the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local 
area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. 
Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to publish information about 
what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants 
can readily access advice about these matters. However, applicants are also expected to 
undertake their own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform 
the content of the application. 
 
Paragraph 8.42  

 
Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 
demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 
objectives, that they understand: 
 
•  the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 

hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children 
may congregate; 

•  any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 
•  any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) 
which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

 
Paragraph 8.43  

 
Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they will 
manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 
cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of 
how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will take to mitigate the 
impact; and why they consider the application should be an exception to the policy. 
 
Paragraph 8.44  

 
It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining the 
steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 
premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this will 
have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion of 
the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which may be relevant to 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no known concerns, 
acknowledge this in their application. 
 

9. Determining applications 
 
Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 
 
Paragraph 9.4  

 
A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation 
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from new 
licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 

Page 55



businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance 
were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should relate to the 
impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. For 
representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to the 
subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or other 
person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their 
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 
 
Paragraph 9.8  
 
Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are frivolous, 
vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political judgement. This 
may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents within their own 
wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the recommendation in this 
Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for consideration by the sub- 
committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a hearing. Any councillor who 
considers that their own interests are such that they are unable to consider the matter 
independently should disqualify themselves.  
 
Paragraph 9.9  

 
It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of a 
representation should be given to the person making that representation. The subsequent 
hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making the 
representation to amplify and clarify it. 
 

Page 56



Status:  This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

Equality Act 2010
2010 CHAPTER 15

PART 11

ADVANCEMENT OF EQUALITY

CHAPTER 1

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY

149 Public sector equality duty

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to—

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the
exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned in subsection (1).

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons
is disproportionately low.

Page 57

McDowellA_6
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 6



2 Equality Act 2010 (c. 15)
Part 11 – Advancement of equality

Chapter 1 – Public sector equality duty
Document Generated: 2021-06-08

Status:  This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account
of disabled persons’ disabilities.

(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due
regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) tackle prejudice, and
(b) promote understanding.

(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

(7) The relevant protected characteristics are—
age;
disability;
gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity;
race;
religion or belief;
sex;
sexual orientation.

(8) A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to—
(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule;
(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule.

(9) Schedule 18 (exceptions) has effect.

150 Public authorities and public functions

(1) A public authority is a person who is specified in Schedule 19.

(2) In that Schedule—
Part 1 specifies public authorities generally;
Part 2 specifies relevant Welsh authorities;
Part 3 specifies relevant Scottish authorities.

(3) A public authority specified in Schedule 19 is subject to the duty imposed by
section 149(1) in relation to the exercise of all of its functions unless subsection (4)
applies.

(4) A public authority specified in that Schedule in respect of certain specified functions
is subject to that duty only in respect of the exercise of those functions.

(5) A public function is a function that is a function of a public nature for the purposes
of the Human Rights Act 1998.

151 Power to specify public authorities

(1) A Minister of the Crown may by order amend Part 1, 2 or 3 of Schedule 19.

Page 58


	Agenda
	1 TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE WHERE RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN RECEIVED - THE POOL SHED, MARSH FARM COTTAGE, FRAMPTON ROADS
	Appendix 1 - Application
	Appendix 2 - Location plan
	Appendix 3 - Representations
	Appendix 4 - Licensing Policy Extract
	Appendix 5 - Section 182 Guidance
	Appendix 6 - Equality Act 2010 extract




